
CAYUGA COUNTY 
AGRICULTURE AND FARMLAND PROTECTION BOARD 

 
COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING – 160 GENESEE STREET – AUBURN, NEW YORK 13201 (315) 253-1276 
 
 

Thursday, April 9, 2020 
 

10:00 a.m. 
 

Via Conference Call 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 
(1) Call to Order 
(2) Elect a Chair of the Board for 2020 
(3) Approval of Minutes – August 19, 2019  
(4) Appointment of CCE Representative to AFPB – Dan Welch 
(5) Ag District Annual Inclusion of Property into District Requests 

(a) Review Requests for Inclusion 
(b) Adoption of Resolution (01-20) for Board’s recommendations on inclusion properties 

(6) SunEast Development, LLC; Dogs Corners Solar in the Town of Ledyard NOI 
(a) Review NOI for requested comment from NYSDAM re: “whether the action will 

have an unreasonably adverse effect on the continuing viability of a farm enterprise, 
or enterprises within the district”. 

(7) NYALT PDR Support Letter 
(a) Consider authorizing Chair to sign a letter in support of State Application for a farm 

that the Board has previously supported but was not selected by NYALT… Kari 
Terwilliger to explain request to Board. 

(8) Other Business 
(9) Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

DRAFT Minutes 
Cayuga County Ag & Farmland Protection Board 

Monday, August 19, 2019, 10:00 A.M. 
5th Floor, Conference Room 

Cayuga County Office Building 
Auburn, NY 13021 

 
Board Members Present:  
Kelly Anderson, Chair (Cayuga County Real Property Services, Director) 
Jason Cuddaback, designee (Chairperson of the Board of Directors CCSWCD) 
Jeff Ten Eyck (Agricultural Land Preservation Organization Representative) 
Dennis Eckel (Agribusiness Representative) 
Craig Culver (Farmer Representative) 
Christopher Gross (Farmer Representative) 
John O’Connell, III (Farmer Representative) 
 
Others present:  
Kari Terwilliger (CCPED Staff to AFPB) 
 
Absent: 
Andrew Dennison (Cayuga County Legislator) 
Steve Lynch (Cayuga County Planning & Economic Development, Director) 
Thane Benson (Farmer Representative) 
 
1. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Kelly Anderson at approximately 10:04 A.M. with a quorum of members 
present. 
 
2. Approval of Minutes – April 30, 2019 meeting 
Kelly Anderson asked the Board if they had reviewed the minutes from the April 30, 2019 meeting and if they had 
any questions, comments, or corrections to make. There were none. She asked if there was a motion to approve said 
minutes. Jason Cuddaback made a motion that the minutes from April 30, 2019 be accepted as written. 
Motion seconded by John O’Connell, III. Motion carried.  
 
3. County Agricultural District Mandatory 8-Year Review 
Kelly Anderson asked Kari Terwilliger to review this agenda item with the Board. Kari briefly went through a 
prepared PowerPoint presentation that was provided to the Board in their meeting packets in advance of the meeting. 
Kari summarized the 12 requests that she received to remove a total of 50 parcels and 3,678.49 acres of land from 
the County’s Agricultural District. She noted that the majority of this land was not currently being used for farming, 
and according to County RPS data, is being used for manufacturing, mining, public utilities, or state owned forest 
lands. She did note that there are a few agricultural parcels that property owners requested to have removed for 
future development. The Board briefly discussed these requests; and Kari pointed out the areas for removal on a 
series of maps she prepared as part of the presentation. After a brief discussion, Kelly Anderson asked the Board if 
they had any further questions or comments with regards to the proposed modification to the County Agricultural 
District. Hearing none, Kelly Anderson asked for a motion to approve the resolution prepared for the Board which 
would support the landowner’s requests to remove a total of 50 parcels and 3,678.49 acres of land from the County’s 
Agricultural District. Dennis Eckel made a motion to approve the resolution as presented. Motion seconded 
by John O’Connell, III. Motion carried. 

 
4. Other Business  
Kelly Anderson asked Kari if she knew of any other business for the Board to address this year. Kari stated that 
there would likely be another round of PDR with the usual landowner meeting in October or November, with pre-
applications due to her in December or January, for the Board’s review in March. She stated that she has a pretty 
good list of landowners from previous rounds, and some new ones, that are interested in applying through the 



Page 2 of 4 
 

county. Kelly then asked if anyone had any other business to discuss. Dennis Eckle asked if the Board has or should 
have a role in the solar “farms” that are being proposed across the county and their potential impacts to farming. 
Kari stated that unfortunately the AFPB does not really have any power to do much, but that she and other planners 
in her office have been working with some of the towns and villages to adopt regulations for solar installations that 
will permit them, but hopefully mitigate the impacts on agriculture as much as possible. Kelly mentioned that the 
county was trying to work with CEDA to develop standards for PILOT (payment in-lieu of taxes) programs and 
guidance for the municipalities to know that they can request that the properties in question are not taken off the tax 
rolls. Dennis asked what the County Planning Board was doing about these projects; and Kari said that they weren’t 
really doing anything other than discussing with each other that these projects were happening in their community. 
Kari stated that she thought the Planning Department had offered a training on “planning for solar” in recent years; 
but that she would speak with the staff in her office in charge of the training series to see if they could offer a 
training again to empower communities to adopt regulations and procedures for large scale solar projects. 
 
5. Adjournment 
Kelly Anderson asked if there was any further discussion or business to come before the Board. Hearing none, she 
asked for a motion to adjourn. John O’Connell, III made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Motion seconded 
by Jeff Ten Eyck.  Motion carried. Meeting was adjourned at 10:35 A.M.   
 
 
Minutes prepared by Kari Terwilliger 
 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 



 2020 Agricultural District

Inclusion Requests Agricultural Soils

Request # TAX MAP # LOCATION

RPS 

PROP 

CLASS 

CODE

OWNER NAME ACRES MUNICIPALITY AGRICULTURAL USE*

% 

USDA 

Prime 

Soils

% NYS Soils 

of Statewide 

Significance

% Soils 

which are 

not Prime or 

of Statewide 

Significance

% Viable AG 

(USDA Prime 

+ NYS Sig.)

1 122.00-1-45 Bluefield Rd 311 Stephen P. Koon 1.60 Aurelius Hay Field 76.25% 23.75% 0.00% 100.00%

2 182.17-1-58.121 Dublin Hill Rd 311 Timothy L. Lawrence 2.70 Aurora Grass Hay 45.92% 0.00% 54.08% 45.92%

3 222.00-1-4 Skinner Hill Rd 105 William & Victoria Kerrick 25.00 Moravia Cropland-Hay 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00%

4 233.00-1-40 Dresser Rd 105 Thomas McCloy 9.00 Summerhill Farmed-Crops 0.00% 87.56% 12.44% 87.56%

5 120.00-1-26.2 Benham Rd 210 Dennis Walowsky 3.95 Aurelius Goats 45.66% 8.43% 45.91% 54.09%

6 110.00-1-49.12 Franklin Street Rd 105 Joseph C. Connors 2.80 Sennett Cropland 27.79% 72.21% 0.00% 100.00%

7 130.00-1-16.521 West Lake Rd 120 DGM Ag, LLC 119.40 Fleming Row Crop 38.42% 42.57% 19.01% 80.99%

8 13.00-1-39.2 Wilde Rd 240 Dean D. Cummins 27.90 Sterling Slobe Farms 49.34% 50.13% 0.53% 99.47%

9 112.00-1-15 Rt 90 105 Peter J. Chappell 128.60 Aurelius Farm 2.99% 41.63% 55.38% 44.62%

10 76.00-1-62 Oakland Rd 311 John R. Roden 0.76 Brutus Pasture 0.00% 12.64% 87.36% 12.64%

Total # of Parcels: 10 Total # of Acres: 321.71

*As written by landowner on application



BLUEFIELD RD

DUNNING AVE

EXPERIMENTAL RD

KOON RD

PINCKNEY RD
OVERBROOK DR

WILLOW DR
2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

BLUEFIELD RD

DUNNING AVE

EXPERIMENTAL RD

KOON RD

PINCKNEY RD
OVERBROOK DR

WILLOW DR

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 1

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

Stephen P. Koon
2352 Koon Rd.
Auburn, NY 13021
122.00-1-45
Aurelius
1.60
Hay Field

76.25%

23.75%

00.00%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



MAIN ST

FRY RD

DUBLIN HILL RD

COURT ST

WELLS ST

CHERRY AVE

Cayuga Lake

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

MAIN ST

FRY RD

DUBLIN HILL RD

COURT ST

WELLS ST

CHERRY AVE

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 2

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

Timothy L. Lawrence
60 Dublin Hill Rd
Aurora, NY 13026
182.17-1-58.121
Aurora
2.70
Grass Hay

45.92%

00.00%

54.08%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles



SKINNER HILL RD

MASTEN RD

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

SKINNER HILL RD

MASTEN RD
Prime:

Soils of Statewide
Significance:

Not Prime or of
Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 3

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

William & Victoria 
Kerrick
1583 Masten Rd
Moravia, NY 13118
222.00-1-4
Moravia
25.00
Cropland-Hay

  00.00%

100.00%

  00.00%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



SA
LT

 R
D

DRES SER RD

HOAG AVE

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

SA
LT

 R
D

DRES SER RD

HOAG AVE

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 4

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

Thomas McCloy
6665 Creech Rd
Locke, NY 13092
233.00-1-40
Summerhill
9.00
Farmed-Crops

00.00%

87.56%

12.44%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



BENHAM RD

CHAMBERLAIN RD
CHAMBERLAIN RD

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

BENHAM RD

CHAMBERLAIN RD
CHAMBERLAIN RD

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 5

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

Dennis Walowsky
6120 Benham Rd
Auburn, NY 13021
120.00-1-26.2
Aurelius
3.95
Goats

45.66%

  8.43%

45.91%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



SW
AMP RD

FRANKLIN STREET RD

CHERRY STREET RD

PARCELL RD

CALEMAD DR

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

SW
AMP RD

FRANKLIN STREET RD

CHERRY STREET RD

PARCELL RD

CALEMAD DR

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 6

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

Joseph C. Connors
3664 Franklin St Rd
Auburn, NY 13021
110.00-1-49.12
Sennett
2.80
Cropland

27.79%

72.21%

00.00%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



W LAKE RD

MOBBS R
D

BUCK POINT RD

Owasco Lake

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

W LAKE RD

MOBBS R
D

BUCK POINT RD

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 7

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

DGM Ag, LLC
5083 White Rd.
Union Springs, NY 
13160
130.00-1-16.521
Fleming
119.40
Row Crop

38.42%

42.57%

19.01%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



WILDE RD

MARTVILLE RD

ONIONVILLE RD
2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

WILDE RD

MARTVILLE RD

ONIONVILLE RD

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 8

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

Dean D. Cummins
3125 Route 370
Cato, NY 13033
13.00-1-39.2
Sterling
27.90
Slobe Farms

49.34%

50.13%

00.53%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance

O
s
w

e
g

o
 C

o
u

n
ty

Oswego County



ROUTE 90

CAYU
GA RD

WILLARD STWA
TE

R S
T

Cayuga Lake

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

ROUTE 90

CAYU
GA RD

WILLARD STWA
TE

R S
T

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 9

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

Peter J Chappell
170 Turnpike Rd Ext
Cayuga, NY 13034
112.00-1-15
Aurelius
128.60
Farm

  2.99%

41.63%

55.38%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



RIVER RD

O A KLAND RD

HE
WI

TT
 LN

2020 Annual Inclusions to
Cayuga County Ag District

RIVER RD

O A KLAND RD

HE
WI

TT
 LN

Prime:
Soils of Statewide

Significance:
Not Prime or of

Statewide Significance:

Inclusion # 10

Owner:

Mailing Address:

Tax Map Number:

Town:

Acreage:

Agricultural Use:

Soils:

John R Roden
9640 Oakland Rd.
Weedsport, NY 13166
76.00-1-62
Brutus
0.76
Pasture

00.00%

12.64%

87.36%

Note: This parcel was listed as part of an active
farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review
Sheet submitted by the landowner for the 
County's 8-Year Review of the Agricultural 
District in 2019; but is not currently in the 
Agricultural DIstrict.

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4
Miles

µ
Legend

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Local or Private

Town Boundaries

2020 Inclusion Parcels

Parcels in Ag District

Parcels

USDA Prime Soils

NYS Soils of Statewide Significance

Soils which are not Prime or of Statewide Significance



RESOLUTION NO. 01-2020 April 9, 2020 
 
RECOMMENDATION FOR APPROVAL OF THE INCLUSION OF LAND INTO CAYUGA COUNTY 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 

Motion by: _______________________________________, Cayuga County Agriculture & Farmland Protection Board 

WHEREAS, during the annual inclusion period between March 1, 2020 and March 30, 2020 the Cayuga County 
Department of Planning & Economic Development received applications for the inclusion of 10 parcels of real property 
into the Cayuga County Agricultural District. A list of the properties, their corresponding tax map numbers, owners, and 
the towns in which they are located is attached here to; and 

WHEREAS, all 10 parcels in question were listed as part of an active farm operation on the Agricultural Data Review 
Sheet submitted by each corresponding landowner for the County’s Eight-Year Review of the Agricultural District in 
2019 but are not currently in the Agricultural District; and 

WHEREAS, the viability of the soils for agricultural production and the current use of the requested parcels has been 
reviewed and all of the requested parcels either have highly productive soils or are currently in agricultural production; 
and 

WHEREAS, the inclusion of all of the 10 requested parcels is consistent with the goals of the 2014 Cayuga County 
Agriculture and Farmland Protection Plan; and 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 10 said parcels are predominately viable agricultural land as defined by 
Article 25AA §303-b of the New York State Agriculture and Markets Law; and be it further 

RESOLVED, that the Cayuga County Agriculture & Farmland Protection Board recommends that the Cayuga County 
Legislature adopt a resolution to add the attached list of parcels, into the Cayuga County Agricultural District. 

 
Second by: _________________________________________, Cayuga County Agriculture & Farmland Protection 
Board 

Votes For: _______   Votes Against: ______ 

I HEREBY CERTIFY, THAT I HAVE COMPARED THE FOREGOING COPY OF A RESOLUTION DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE AGRICULTURE & 
FARMLAND PROTECTION BOARD OF CAYUGA COUNTY AT A MEETING HELD ON THE 9th DAY OF APRIL, 2020, WITH THE ORIGINAL RESOLUTION, AND 
THAT THE SAME IS A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY AND TRANSCRIPT THEREOF, AND THE WHOLE THEREOF. 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Kari Terwilliger, staff to the Cayuga County Agriculture & Farmland Protection Board 
 
DATED: April 9, 2020 

Cayuga County Agricultural District 
2020 Inclusion Requests 

Tax ID # Acres Location Owner Name Municipality 

122.00-1-45 1.60 Bluefield Rd Stephen P. Koon Aurelius 
182.17-1-58.121 2.70 Dublin Hill Rd Timothy L. Lawrence Aurora 

222.00-1-4 25.00 Skinner Hill Rd William & Victoria Kerrick Moravia 
233.00-1-40 9.00 Dresser Rd Thomas McCloy Summerhill 

120.00-1-26.2 3.95 Benham Rd Dennis Walowsky Aurelius 
110.00-1-49.12 2.80 Franklin Street Rd Joseph C. Connors Sennett 
130.00-1-16.521 119.40 West Lake Rd DGM Ag, LLC Fleming 

13.00-1-39.2 27.90 Wilde Rd Dean D. Cummins Sterling 
112.00-1-15 128.60 Rt 90 Peter J. Chappell Aurelius 
76.00-1-62 0.76 Oakland Rd John R. Roden Brutus 

Total: 321.71 acres 
































